# **Adcon Capital Services Limited**

# Code of Conduct & Fair Practice Code for Insider Trading

Effective from 15<sup>th</sup> May 2015

&

Last amended to 30<sup>th</sup> September 2022

# **ADCON CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED**

CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE, INTERNAL PROCEDURES AND CONDUCT FOR REGULATING, MONITORING AND REPORTING OF TRADING BY INSIDERS (Effective from 15th May 2015)

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Sr. No.	Particulars	Page Nos.
1.	Definitions	3
2.	Role of Compliance Officer	5
3.	Preservation of "Price Sensitive Information	6
4.	Prevention of misuse of "Unpublished Price Sensitive Information"	7
5.	Trading Window and Window Closure	8
6.	Pre-clearance of trades	9
7.	Other Restrictions	10
8.	Reporting Requirements for transactions in securities	10
9.	Disclosure by the Company to the Stock Exchange(s)	11
10.	Dissemination of Price Sensitive Information	11
11.	Penalty for contravention of the code of conduct	11
12.	Code of Fair Disclosure	12
13.	Annexure – 1: Specimen of application for pre-dealing approval	13
14.	Annexure – 2: Format of undertaking to be accompanied with the	14
	application for pre-clearance	
15.	Annexure – 3: Format for pre- clearance order	15
16.	Annexure – 4: Format for disclosure of transactions	16
17.	Annexure – 5: Format for initial disclosure of securities	17
18.	Annexure – 6: Disclosure of change in shareholding	18

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1. "Act" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.
- 1.2. "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.
- 1.3. "Code" or "Code of Conduct" shall mean the Code of Fair disclosures, Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of trading by insiders, employees and other connected persons of ADCON CAPITAL SERVICES Limited as amended from time to time.
- 1.4. "Company" means ADCON CAPITAL SERVICES Limited.
- 1.5. "Compliance Officer" means senior officer, who is financially literate and is capable of appreciating requirements for legal and regulatory compliance under these regulations designated so and reporting to the Board of Directors and who shall be responsible for compliance of policies, procedures, maintenance of records, monitoring adherence to the rules for the preservation of unpublished price sensitive information, monitoring of trades and the implementation of the codes specified in these regulations under the overall supervision of the Board of Directors of the Company.

# 1.6. "Connected Person" means:

- i. any person who is or has during the six months prior to the concerned act been associated with a company,, directly or indirectly, in any capacity including by reason of frequent communication with its officers or by being in any contractual, fiduciary or employment relationship or by being a director, officer or an employee of the Company or holds any position including a professional or business relationship between himself and the Company whether temporary or permanent, that allows such person, directly or indirectly, access to unpublished price sensitive information or is reasonably expected to allow such access.
- ii. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the persons falling within the following categories shall be deemed to be connected persons unless the contrary is established,
  - a) an immediate relative of connected persons specified in clause (i); or
  - b) a holding company or associate company or subsidiary company; or
  - c) an intermediary as specified in Section 12 of the Act or an employee or director thereof; or
  - d) an investment company, trustee company, asset management company or an employee or director thereof; or
  - e) an official of a stock exchange or of clearing house or corporation; or
  - f) a member of board of trustees of a mutual fund or a member of the board of directors of the asset management company of a mutual fund or is an employee thereof; or

- g) a member of the Board of directors or an employee, of a public financial institution as defined in section 2 (72) of the Companies Act, 2013; or
- h) an official or an employee of a self-regulatory organization recognized or authorized by the Board; or
- i) a banker of the Company; or
- j) a concern, firm, trust, hindu undivided family, company or association of persons wherein a director of the Company or his immediate relative or banker of the Company, has more than ten per cent, of the holding or interest.
- 1.7. "Dealing in Securities" means an act of subscribing to, buying, selling or agreeing to subscribe to, buy, sell or deal in the securities of the Company either as principal or agent.
- 1.8. **Designated Employee**(s) shall include:
  - a. every employee in the finance, accounts, secretarial and legal department as may be determined and informed by the Compliance Officer; and
  - b. any other employee as may be determined and informed by the Compliance Officer from time to time.
- 1.9. "Director" means a member of the Board of Directors of the Company.
- 1.10. "Employee" means every employee of the Company including the Directors in the employment of the Company.
- 1.11. "Generally available Information" means information that is accessible to the public on a non-discriminatory basis.
- 1.12. "Immediate Relative" means a spouse of a person, and includes parent, sibling, and child of such person or of the spouse, any of whom is either dependent financially on such person, or consults such person in taking decisions relating to trading in securities
- 1.13. "Insider" means any person who,
  - a) a connected person; or
  - b) In possession of or having access to unpublished price sensitive information.
- 1.14. "**Key Managerial Person**" means person as defined in Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013
- 1.15. **"Promoter"** shall have the meaning assigned to it under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 or any modification thereof:

- 1.16. "Securities" shall have the meaning assigned to it under the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (42 of 1956) or any modification thereof except units of a mutual fund;
- 1.17. "Takeover Regulations" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and any amendments thereto;
- 1.18. "Trading" means and includes subscribing, buying, selling, dealing, or agreeing to subscribe, buy, sell, deal in any securities, and "trade" shall be construed accordingly
- 1.19. "Trading Day" means a day on which the recognized stock exchanges are open for trading;
- 1.20. "Unpublished Price Sensitive Information" means: means any information, relating to a company or its securities, directly or indirectly, that is not generally available which upon becoming generally available, is likely to materially affect the price of the securities and shall, ordinarily including but not restricted to, information relating to the following:
  - a) financial results;
  - b) dividends;
  - c) change in capital structure;
  - d) mergers, de-mergers, acquisitions, delisting, disposals and expansion of business and such other transactions;
  - e) changes in key managerial personnel; and
  - f) material events in accordance with the listing agreement
- 1.21. "**Regulations**" shall mean the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and any amendments thereto.
- 1.22. "Specified Persons" means the Directors, connected persons, the insiders, the Designated Employees and the promoters and immediate relatives are collectively referred to as Specified Persons.

Words and expressions used and not defined in these regulations but defined in the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (15 of 1992), the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (42 of 1956), the Depositories Act, 1996 (22 of 1996) or the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and rules and regulations made there under shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in those legislation.

#### 2. ROLE OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

2.1 The Compliance Officer shall report on insider trading to the Board of Directors of the Company and in particular, shall provide reports to the Chairman of the Audit

Committee, if any, or to the Chairman of the Board of Directors at such frequency as may be stipulated by the Board of Directors.

The Compliance Officer shall assist all employees in addressing any clarifications regarding the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the Company's Code of Conduct.

# 3. PRESERVATION OF "PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION"

3.1 All information shall be handled within the Company on a need-to-know basis and no unpublished price sensitive information shall be communicated to any person except in furtherance of the insider's legitimate purposes, performance of duties or discharge of his legal obligations.

Unpublished price sensitive information may be communicated, provided, allowed access to or procured, in connection with a transaction which entails:

- an obligation to make an open offer under the takeover regulations where the Board of Directors of the Company is of informed opinion that the proposed transaction is in the best interests of the Company; or
- not attracting the obligation to make an open offer under the takeover regulations but where the Board of Directors of the Company is of informed opinion that the proposed transaction is in the best interests of the Company and the information that constitute unpublished price sensitive information is disseminated to be made generally available at least two trading days prior to the proposed transaction being effected in such form as the Board of Directors may determine.

However, the Board of Directors shall require the parties to execute agreements to contract confidentiality and non-disclosure obligations on the part of such parties and such parties shall keep information so received confidential, except for the limited purpose and shall not otherwise trade in securities of the Company when in possession of unpublished price sensitive information

# 3.2 **Need to Know:**

- a. "need to know" basis means that Unpublished Price Sensitive Information should be disclosed only to those within the Company who need the information to discharge their duty and whose possession of such information will not give rise to a conflict of interest or appearance of misuse of the information.
- b. All non-public information directly received by any employee should immediately be reported to the head of the department.

# 3.3 Limited access to confidential information:

Files containing confidential information shall be kept secure. Computer files must have adequate security of login and password, etc.

# 4. PREVENTION OF MISUSE OF "UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION"

Employees and connected persons designated on the basis of their functional role ("designated persons") in the Company shall be governed by an internal code of conduct governing dealing in securities.

# 4.1 Trading Plan

An insider shall be entitle to formulate a trading plan for dealing in securities of the Company and present it to the Compliance Officer for approval and public disclosure pursuant to which trades may be carried out on his behalf in accordance with such plan.

# 4.2 Trading Plan shall:

- a. not entail commencement of trading on behalf of the insider earlier than six months from the public disclosure of the plan;
- b. not entail trading for the period between the twentieth trading day prior to the last day of any financial period for which results are required to be announced by the issuer of the securities and the second trading day after the disclosure of such financial results;
- c. entail trading for a period of not less than twelve months;
- d. not entail overlap of any period for which another trading plan is already in existence;
- e. set out either the value of trades to be effected or the number of securities to be traded along with the nature of the trade and the intervals at, or dates on which such trades shall be effected; and
- f. not entail trading in securities for market abuse.
- 4.3 The Compliance Officer shall consider the Trading Plan made as above and shall approve it forthwith. However, he shall be entitled to take express undertakings as may be necessary to enable such assessment and to approve and monitor the implementation of the plan as per provisions of the Regulations.
- 4.4 The Trading Plan once approved shall be irrevocable and the Insider shall mandatorily have to implement the plan, without being entitled to either deviate from it or to execute any trade in the securities outside the scope of the trading plan.

However, the implementation of the trading plan shall not be commenced, if at the time of formulation of the plan, the Insider is in possession of any unpublished price sensitive information and the said information has not become generally available at the time of the commencement of implementation. The commencement of the Plan shall be deferred until such unpublished price sensitive information becomes generally available information.

Further, the Insider shall also not be allowed to deal in securities of the Company, if the date of trading in securities of the Company, as per the approved Trading Plan, coincides with the date of closure of Trading Window announced by the Compliance Officer.

4.5 Upon approval of the trading plan, the compliance officer shall notify the plan to the stock exchanges on which the securities are listed.

### 5. TRADING WINDOW AND WINDOW CLOSURE

- 5.1 (i) The trading period, i.e. the trading period of the stock exchanges, called 'trading window', is available for trading in the Company's securities.
  - (ii) The trading window shall be, inter alia, closed 7 days prior to and during the time the unpublished price sensitive information is published.
  - (iii) When the trading window is closed, the Specified Persons shall not trade in the Company's securities in such period.
  - (iv) All Specified Persons shall conduct all their dealings in the securities of the Company only in a valid trading window and shall not deal in any transaction involving the purchase or sale of the Company's securities during the periods when the trading window is closed, as referred to in Point No. (ii) above or during any other period as may be specified by the Company from time to time.
  - (vi) In case of ESOPs, exercise of option may be allowed in the period when the trading window is closed. However, sale of shares allotted on exercise of ESOPs shall not be allowed when trading is closed.
- The Compliance Officer shall intimate the closure of trading window to all the designated employees of the Company when he determines that a designated person or class of designated persons can reasonably be expected to have possession of unpublished price sensitive information. Such closure shall be imposed in relation to such securities to which such unpublished price sensitive information relates.
- The Compliance Officer after taking into account various factors including the unpublished price sensitive information in question becoming generally available and being capable of assimilation by the market, shall decide the timing for reopening of the trading window, however in any event it shall not be earlier than forty-eight hours after the information becomes generally available.
- The trading window shall also be applicable to any person having contractual or fiduciary relation with the Company, such as auditors, accountancy firms, law firms, analysts, consultants etc., assisting or advising the Company.

#### 6. THE ESSENCE OF THE REGULATIONS AND THIS CODE

The PIT Regulations and this Code, inter alia, prohibit an insider:

From communicating, providing, or allowing access to any unpublished price sensitive information, relating to a company or securities listed or proposed to be listed, to any person including other insiders except as provided under Regulations 3(3) of the 2015 Regulations. As per this Regulation, an Unpublished Price Sensitive Information may be communicated, provided, allowed access to or procured, in connection with the transaction that would:

Entail an obligation to make an open offer under the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 where the Board of Directors of the Company is of informed opinion that the proposed transactions is in the best interest of the Company.

Not attract the obligation to make an open offer but where the Board of Directors of the Company is of informed opinion that the proposed transaction is in the best interests of the Company and the UPSI is disseminated to be made generally available at least 2 trading days prior to the proposed transaction being effected.

This prohibition does not apply where such communication is in furtherance of legitimate purposes, performance of duties or discharge of legal obligation.

"Legitimate Purposes" shall include sharing of UPSI in the ordinary course of business and/or such UPSI which is shared in furtherance to fulfilment of any statutory obligation by an insider with partners, collaborators, lenders, customers, suppliers, merchant bankers, legal advisors, auditors, insolvency professionals or other advisors or consultants, provided that such sharing has not been carried out to evade or circumvent the prohibitions of these regulations. Such "Legitimate Purpose" shall include examples of material information provided in "Material facts" as mentioned aforesaid and shall also be determined by the Compliance Officer of the Company in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Any person in receipt of UPSI pursuant to a "legitimate purpose" shall be considered as an "insider" for purposes of this Code and due notice shall be given to such persons;

- a. To make aware such person that the information shared is or would be UPSI.
- b. To make aware to such person that the duties and responsibilities attached to the receipt of such UPSI and the liability attached to misuse or unwarranted.
- c. To instruct such person to maintain the confidentiality of such UPSI in compliance with these regulations.

Policy on determination of Legitimate Purpose is enclosed as "Annexure – A" of this code.

# 7. WHAT ARE THE CONSEQUENCES OF DEFAULT

Inquiry in case of leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information

In case of leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information, appropriate actions shall be initiated against the alleged suspect. The process and procedure for inquiry is enclosed as "Annexure – B" of this code.

# Consequences of default, apart from decision taken under inquiry as stated aforesaid

- 1. As per the Section 15G and 24 of the SEBI Act, Insider, who violate the PIT Regulations, are liable to a penalty that may be imposed by SEBI of Rs. 25 Crore or 3 times the amount of profit made out of the insider trading, whichever is higher and shall also punishable with imprisonment for a term extending to 10 years or a fine up to 25 Crore or both.
- 2. As per Section 11(C) (6) of the SEBI Act, if any person without justifiable reason, refuse to co-operate in any investigation by SEBI with respect to Insider Trading, then he shall be punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up to one year, or with fine up to Rs. 1 Crore or with both, and also with further fine up to Rs. 5 Lakh for every day of such non co-operation.
- 3. As per Section 11(4) (b) of SEBI Act, SEBI is also empowered to pass directions to such insider not to deal in the concerned securities in any particular manner and/or prohibit him from disposing of the concerned securities and /or declaring the concerned transaction(s) of securities as null and void, restraining the insider from communicating or counselling any person to deal in Securities.
- 4. The Company is also empowered to take appropriate action against any employee/officer/director who violates this code. Such action may include a wage freeze, suspension, ineligibility for future participation in ESOP, etc.
- 5. When a person who was traded in securities has been in possession of UPSI, his trades would be presumed to have been motivated by the knowledge and awareness of such information in his possession. This onus is on the insider to prove that they are innocent.

Any violations under the PIT Regulations and this code will be reported by Compliance Officer to SEBI.

# 8. PRE-CLEARANCE OF TRADES

- All Specified Persons, who intend to deal in the securities of the Company when the trading window is opened and if the value of the proposed trades is above 50,000 shares or up to Rs. Ten Lakhs (market value) or 1% of total shareholding, whichever is less, should pre-clear the transaction. However, no designated person shall be entitled to apply for pre-clearance of any proposed trade if such designated person is in possession of unpublished price sensitive information even if the trading window is not closed and hence he shall not be allowed to trade. The pre-dealing procedure shall be hereunder:
  - (i) An application may be made in the prescribed Form (Annexure 1) to the Compliance officer indicating the estimated number of securities that the Specified Employee intends to deal in, the details as to the depository with which he has a security account, the details as to the securities in such

- depository mode and such other details as may be required by any rule made by the company in this behalf.
- (ii) An undertaking (Annexure 2) shall be executed in favour of the Company by such Specified Employee incorporating, inter alia, the following clauses, as may be applicable:
  - a) That the employee/director/officer does not have any access or has not received "Price Sensitive Information" up to the time of signing the undertaking.
  - b) That in case the Specified Employee has access to or receives "Price Sensitive Information" after the signing of the undertaking but before the execution of the transaction he/she shall inform the Compliance Officer of the change in his position and that he/she would completely refrain from dealing in the securities of the Company till the time such information becomes public.
  - c) That he/she has not contravened the code of conduct for prevention of insider trading as notified by the Company from time to time.
  - d) That he/she has made a full and true disclosure in the matter.
- (iii) All Specified Persons and they shall execute their order in respect of securities of the Company within one week after the approval of preclearance is given. The Specified Person shall file within 2 (two) days of the execution of the deal, the details of such deal with the Compliance Officer in the prescribed form. In case the transaction is not undertaken, a report to that effect shall be filed. (Annexure 4).
- (iv) If the order is not executed within seven days after the approval is given, the employee/director must pre-clear the transaction again.
- (v) All Specified Persons who buy or sell any number of shares of the Company shall not enter into an opposite transaction i.e. sell or buy any number of shares during the next six months following the prior transaction. All Specified Persons shall also not take positions in derivative transactions in the shares of the Company at any time. In case of any contra trade be executed, inadvertently or otherwise, in violation of such a restriction, the profits from such trade shall be liable to be disgorged for remittance to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for credit to the Investor Protection and Education Fund administered by SEBI under the Act.

In case of subscription in the primary market (initial public offers), the above mentioned entities shall hold their investments for a minimum period of 30 days. The holding period would commence when the securities are actually allotted.

(vi) The Compliance Officer may waive off the holding period in case of sale of securities in personal emergency after recording reasons for the same. However, no such sale will be permitted when the Trading window is closed.

# 9. OTHER RESTRICTIONS

- 7.1 The disclosures to be made by any person under this Code shall include those relating to trading by such person's immediate relatives, and by any other person for whom such person takes trading decisions.
- 7.2 The disclosures of trading in securities shall also include trading in derivatives of securities and the traded value of the derivatives shall be taken into account for purposes of this Code.
- 7.3 The disclosures made under this Code shall be maintained for a period of five years.

# 10. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSACTIONS IN SECURITIES INITIAL DISCLOSURE

- 8.1 Every promoter/ Key Managerial Personnel / Director / Officers / Designated Employees of the Company, within thirty days of these regulations taking effect, shall forward to the Company the details of all holdings in securities of the Company presently held by them including the statement of holdings of dependent family members in the prescribed Form (Annexure 5).
- 8.2 Every person on appointment as a key managerial personnel or a director of the Company or upon becoming a promoter shall disclose his holding of securities of the Company as on the date of appointment or becoming a promoter, to the Company within seven days of such appointment or becoming a promoter.

# **CONTINUAL DISCLOSURE**

- 8.3 Every promoter, employee and director of the Company shall disclose to the Company the number of such securities acquired or disposed of within two trading days of such transaction if the value of the securities traded, whether in one transaction or a series of transactions over any calendar quarter, aggregates to a traded value in excess of Rs. Ten lakhs. The disclosure shall be made within 2 working days of:
  - i. the receipt of intimation of allotment of shares, or
  - ii. the acquisition or sale of shares or voting rights, as the case may be.

# 11. DISCLOSURE BY THE COMPANY TO THE STOCK EXCHANGE(S)

- 9.1 Within 2 days of the receipt of intimation under Clause 8.3, the Compliance Officer shall disclose to all Stock Exchanges on which the Company is listed, the information received.
- 9.2 The Compliance officer shall maintain records of all the declarations in the appropriate form given by the directors / officers / designated employees for a minimum period of five years.

### 12. DISSEMINATION OF PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION

- 10.1 No information shall be passed by Specified Persons by way of making a recommendation for the purchase or sale of securities of the Company.
- Disclosure/dissemination of Price Sensitive Information with special reference to analysts, media persons and institutional investors:

The following guidelines shall be followed while dealing with analysts and institutional investors

- Only public information to be provided.
- At least two Company representatives be present at meetings with analysts, media persons and institutional investors.
- Unanticipated questions may be taken on notice and a considered response given later. If the answer includes price sensitive information, a public announcement should be made before responding.
- Simultaneous release of information after every such meet.

# 13. PENALTY FOR CONTRAVENTION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

- 11.1 Every Specified Person shall be individually responsible for complying with the provisions of the Code (including to the extent the provisions hereof are applicable to his/her dependents).
- Any Specified Person who trades in securities or communicates any information for trading in securities, in contravention of this Code may be penalised and appropriate action may be taken by the Company.
- Specified Persons who violate the Code shall also be subject to disciplinary action by the Company, which may include wage freeze, suspension, ineligibility for future participation in employee stock option plans, etc.
- 11.4 The action by the Company shall not preclude SEBI from taking any action in case of violation of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

## 14. CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE

A code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information for adhering each of the principles is set out below:

- 1. Prompt public disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information that would impact price discovery no sooner than credible and concrete information comes into being in order to make such information generally available.
- 2. Uniform and universal dissemination of unpublished price sensitive unpublished price sensitive information to avoid selective disclosure.
- 3. Designation of a senior officer as a chief investor relations officer to deal with dissemination of information and disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information.
- 4. Prompt dissemination of unpublished price sensitive information that gets disclosed selectively, inadvertently or otherwise to make such information generally available.
- 5. Appropriate and fair response to queries on news reports and requests for verification of market rumors by regulatory authorities.
- 6. Ensuring that information shared with analysts and research personnel is not unpublished price sensitive information.
- 7. Developing best practices to make transcripts or records of proceedings of meetings with analysts and other investor relations conferences on the official website to ensure official confirmation and documentation of disclosures made.
- 8. Handling of all unpublished price sensitive information on a need-to-know basis.

\*\*\*\*\*\*

# SPECIMEN OF APPLICATION FOR PRE-DEALING APPROVAL

Date:			
	ompliance Officer, ON CAPITAL SERVICES Limited, e		
Dear !	Sir/Madam,		
	Re: Application for Pre-dealing appr	oval in	securities of the Company
Code	ant to the SEBI (prohibition of Insider Tr of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Tr ription of equity shares of the C	rading,	I seek approval to purchase / sale
1.	Name of the Applicant		
2.	Designation		
3.	Number of securities held as on date		
4.	Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID No.)		
5.	The proposal is for	(a) (b) (c)	Purchase of securities Subscription to securities Sale of securities
6.	Proposed date of dealing in securities		
7.	Estimated number of securities proposed to be acquired/subscribed /sold		
8.	Price at which the transaction is proposed		
9.	Current market price (as on date of application)		
10.	Whether the proposed transaction will be through stock exchange or off-market deal		
11.	Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID No. where the securities will be credited / debited		
	ose herewith the form of Undertaking sign	ed by r	me.
(Signa	ature of Employee)		

# FORMAT OF UNDERTAKING TO BE ACCOMPANIED WITH THE APPLICATION FOR PRE-CLEARANCE UNDERTAKING

10,			
<b>ADCON CAPITAL SERVICES Limit</b>	ed,		
Indore			
I.		of the	Company
residing at	,	am desirous of	dealing in
I,* residing at* shares of the C	ompany as mentioned in m	, and acsilous of	acaming in
for pre-clearance of the transacti		ny application dated	
To pre-clearance of the transacti	on.		
I further declare that I am not in Sensitive Information (as defined Trading (the Code) up to the time	I in the Company's Code of	Conduct for prevention	
In the event that I have access "Price Sensitive Information" as before executing the transactior Officer of the same and shall conuntil such information becomes p	defined in the Code, after to n for which approval is sou npletely refrain from dealin	the signing of this unde ght, I shall inform the (	rtaking but Compliance
I declare that I have not contrav from time to time.	ened the provisions of the	Code as notified by the	e Company
I undertake to submit the necess a 'Nil' report if the transaction is		s of execution of the tr	ansaction /
If approval is granted, I shall exewhich I shall seek pre-clearance.	cute the deal within 7 days	s of the receipt of appr	oval failing
I declare that I have made full an	d true disclosure in the mat	tter.	
Date:			
* Indicate number of shares		Sign	ature:

# FORMAT FOR PRE- CLEARANCE ORDER

To, Name: Designation:
Place:
This is to inform you that your request for dealing in (nos.) shares of the Company as mentioned in your application dated is approved. Please note that the said transaction must be completed on or before (date) that is within 7 days from today.
In case you do not execute the approved transaction /deal on or before the aforesaid date you would have to seek fresh pre-clearance before executing any transaction/deal in the securities of the Company. Further, you are required to file the details of the executed transactions in the attached format within 2 days from the date of transaction/deal. In case the transaction is not undertaken a 'Nil' report shall be necessary.
Yours faithfully, For <b>ADCON CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED</b>
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Date:
Encl: Format for submission of details of transaction

# FORMAT FOR DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

(To be submitted within 2 days of transaction / dealing in securities of the Company)

To, The Compliance ( <b>ADCON CAPITAL</b> Indore	Officer, SERVICES Limited,			
I hereby inform tl	nat I			
	oought / sold/ subscright/sold/subscribed t			ow on
Name of holder	No. of securities dealt with	Bought / sold / subscribed	DP ID / Client ID / Folio No	Price (Rs.)
				<u> </u>
1. Broker's c 2. Proof of p 3. Extract of 4. Copy/ies o I agree to hold thurgent need to s Officer for necess I declare that the	ontract note. ayment to/from brok bank passbook/state of Delivery instruction ne above securities fo ell these securities v sary approval. (application) above information is laws/regulations fo	kers.  ement (to be submited as some submited as sub	ted in case of dema ase of sale transacti d of six months. In od, I shall approach ase / subscription).	t transactions). ion). case there is any the Compliance Company's Code
Date:		N	Signature: Name: Designation:	

# FORMAT FOR INITIAL DISCLOSURE OF SECURITIES

ADCON Indore	•		•	ited,					
submit t becomir	the follong Spec	owing d ified Pe	etails of rson).	securities held i	n the Co	mpany	( as on _	of the Co	ompany hereby (date of
I. Details of securities				olio No.		Beneficiary A/c Clie			
Pursuan Compan	t to the	de of P ave the	ions of S rocedure followin	•		eventio	n of I	nsider Tra	ns, 2015 and the ading, I hereby
							Desig	gnated En	прюуее
III. Det	ails of s	securitie	es held b	y dependent(s):	:				
Name Relat	_	Relation	onship	Type of Securities	No. Secur he	ities	Fo	lio No.	Beneficiary A/c Client ID
Date:						Sig	nature	2:	

# **DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING**

Indore	AL SERVICES L	imited,					
l,		, in my ca	pacity as		C	of the Compan	v hereby
submit the foll	owing details						,,
Name, PAN No. & Address of Shareholder	No. of securities held before the transaction	Receipt of allotment advice / acquisition of / sale of securities	Nature of transaction & quantity			Trading Member through whom the trade was executed with SEBI Registration No. of the TM	Exchange on which the trade was executed
			Purchase	Sale	Others		
Details of char				•			
Name, PAN No. & Address	No. of securities	Receipt of allotment	Nature of transaction & quantity		Trading Member	Exchange on which	
of Shareholder	held before the transaction	advice / acquisition of / sale of securities				through whom the trade was executed with SEBI Registration No. of the TM	the trade was executed
of Shareholder	the	acquisition of / sale of	Purchase	Sale	Others	whom the trade was executed with SEBI Registration	was
I/We declare to	the transaction hat I/We have with respect to	acquisition of / sale of securities  complied with	h the requ s purchase	irement d/sold. ect and o	of the r	whom the trade was executed with SEBI Registration	was executed

#### **Annexure A**

## POLICY ON DETERMINATION OF LEGITIMATE PURPOSE

# **Background**

The Company shares data or information with various stakeholders like organizations, agencies, institutions, intermediaries, establishments, persons, etc., during the course of its business operations. Such unpublished data or information, if made publicly available may materially impact the market price of the listed securities of the Company. If such persons trade on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information ('UPSI'), it could result in an undue advantage to such persons. The trading in the securities of the Company by an insider is governed by and subject to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 ('Regulations') as amended from time to time and this code.

This "Policy on Determination of Legitimate Purpose" ('Policy') is framed by the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the amendment in the Regulations in 2018 and is part of this code.

# Applicability (As specified in Code)

This policy is applicable to all Insiders.

### **Definitions**

- a) "Connected Person" means Connected Person as defined under Regulations and shall also include promoters and their directors and key managerial personnel. (Regulation 2(1)(d)).
- b) "Insider" means any person who is
  - i. a Connected Person or
  - ii. in possession of or having access to Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. (Regulation 2(1)(g))
- "Unpublished price sensitive information or UPSI" means any information, relating to a company or its securities, directly or indirectly, that is not generally available which upon becoming generally available, is likely to materially affect the price of the securities and shall, ordinarily including but not restricted to, information relating to the following:
  - i. financial results;
  - ii. dividends:
  - iii. change in capital structure;

- iv. mergers, de-mergers, acquisitions, de-listings, disposals and expansion of business and such other transactions;
- v. changes in key managerial personnel;
- vi. such other information as determined by the Board of Directors/Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer from time to time. (Regulation 2(1)(n))

# **Legitimate Purpose**

"Legitimate Purpose" shall mean sharing of UPSI in the ordinary course of business or on a need-to know basis. The Company may share the UPSI if required in the interest of the Company. Legitimate Purpose shall inter-alia include sharing of UPSI on need to know basis by an insider with partners, collaborators, lenders, customers, suppliers, merchant bankers, legal advisors, auditors, insolvency professionals or other advisors or consultants, provided that such sharing has not been carried out to evade or circumvent the prohibitions of the Regulations. (Regulation 3(2A) and 3(2B))

In following cases which are illustrative in nature, sharing of UPSI would be considered as legitimate purpose:

For investigation, inquiry or request for information by statutory or governmental authorities or any other administrative body recognized by law;

- i. Under any proceedings or pursuant to any order of courts or tribunals;
- ii. As part of compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and requirements;
- iii. Arising out of any contractual obligations or arrangement entered by the Company set forth in any contract, agreement, arrangement, settlement, understanding or undertaking.
- iv. Arising out of business requirement including requirement for the purposes of promoting the business and Strategies of business. Which may requires sharing of information with Promoters and Promoters in turn with their Promoters on need to know basis.

Example: Some of the examples which are illustrative in nature are as mentioned below;

- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) FOR ADVICE, CONSULTATION, VALUATION, FUND RAISING OR OTHER INTERMEDIATION AND APPROVALS IN RELATION TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF A PROPOSED DEAL/ASSIGNMENT/TIE-UP/VENTURE/FUND RAISING;
- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) WITH INTERMEDIARIES, FIDUCIARIES, MERCHANT BANKERS, ADVISORS, LAWYERS,

BANKERS, CONSULTANTS, VALUERS, AUDITORS, INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONALS, BUSINESS SUPPORT AGENTS, TRANSACTION PROCESSING SERVICE PROVIDERS IN ORDER TO AVAIL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FROM THEM;

- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) FOR ADVICE, CONSULTATION, TRANSACTION SUPPORT, INTERMEDIATION AND APPROVALS ON PROJECTS RELATING TO ENTERPRISE TRANSFORMATION, STRATEGY, CHANGE MANAGEMENT, ANALYTICS, RE-ORGANIZATION, OPERATION IMPROVEMENT, TECHNOLOGY AND SIMILAR DOMAINS;
- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) WITH BUSINESS PARTNERS ESSENTIAL TO FULFILL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF A BUSINESS CONTRACT WITH A CLIENT, VENDOR, COLLABORATOR OR LENDER;
- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) FOR ADVICE, CONSULTATION, TRANSACTION SUPPORT, INTERMEDIATION AND APPROVALS IN THE PROCESS OF EVALUATION OF NEW PRODUCTS, BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES AND NEW LINES OF BUSINESS;
- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) FOR STATUTORY CONSOLIDATION REQUIREMENTS OR RELATED CUSTOMARY DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS;
- SHARING THE RELEVANT UPSI BY COMPANY OR PROMOTER(S) WITH PERSONS ENGAGED OR INVOLVED IN THE PROCESSES LEADING TO DISCLOSURE OF EVENTS SET OUT IN SCHEDULE III TO SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015;

Any person in receipt of UPSI pursuant to a "legitimate purpose" shall be considered an "insider" for purposes of the Regulations and shall comply with the Code.

### **Process for sharing UPSI**

The insider shall conduct the following steps while sharing UPSI: The insider shall conduct the following steps while sharing UPSI:

- Satisfy that information is UPSI and sharing is for legitimate purpose;
- Identify the persons with whom the information is to be shared;
- Notify the recipient that UPSI is being shared and enter into a confidentiality/non-disclosure agreement;
- ❖ Mode of sharing UPSI shall be either by an email (address directly to the insider without copying) or hard copy or any other electronic mode or device or provide access to the information, data, server with acknowledgement;

Adaptation names of the persons along with PAN (or any other identifier where PAN is not available) with whom information is shared. The database shall be maintained with adequate internal controls and checks such as time stamping and audit trails to ensure non-tampering of the database. This database shall be kept confidential.

# **System Audit**

There should be periodic audit once in a year to ensure the integrity of the system and data maintained.

# **Policy Review**

The Policy shall be reviewed periodically in accordance with review of internal control and check as well as changes or any regulatory requirements from time to time.

In the events of inconsistency of this Policy with any legal provisions, the provisions of the law shall override this Policy.

Legitimate Purpose referred to in the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

# **Regulation 3:**

- No insider shall communicate, provide, or allow access to any unpublished price sensitive information, relating to a company or securities listed or proposed to be listed, to any person including other insiders except where such communication is in furtherance of legitimate purposes, performance of duties or discharge of legal obligations.
- 2. No person shall procure from or cause the communication by any insider of UPSI, relating to a company or securities listed or proposed to be listed, except in furtherance of legitimate purposes, performance of duties or discharge of legal obligations.
- **3.** The board of directors of a listed company shall make a policy for determination of **"legitimate purposes"** as a part of "Codes of Fair Disclosure and Conduct" formulated under regulation 8.

**Explanation** - "legitimate purpose" shall include sharing of unpublished price sensitive information in the ordinary course of business by an insider with partners, collaborators, lenders, customers, suppliers, merchant bankers, legal advisors, auditors, insolvency professionals or other advisors or consultants, provided that such sharing has not been carried out to evade or circumvent the prohibitions of these regulations.

4. Any person in receipt of unpublished price sensitive information pursuant to a "legitimate purpose" shall be considered an "insider" for purposes of these regulations and due notice shall be given to such persons to maintain confidentiality of such unpublished price sensitive information in compliance with these regulations.

#### **Annexure B**

# POLICY FOR INQUIRY IN CASE OF LEAK OR SUSPECTED LEAK OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION

[Under Regulation 9A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015]

# **Background**

Regulation 9A of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("SEBI PIT Regulations") mandates every listed company to formulate a written policy and procedures for inquiry in case of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and initiate appropriate inquiries on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and inform SEBI promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries.

# **Applicability**

This policy shall apply to all Insiders and any other persons as assigned by law from time to time.

# Scope

This Policy deals with

- Formulating procedures for inquiry such as initiating inquiry, reporting, etc. in case of leak or suspected leak of UPSI.
- o Strengthening the internal control system to prevent leak of UPSI.
- o Penalizing any insider who appears to have found guilty of violating this policy.

### **Definitions**

The definitions of some of the key terms used in the Policy are given below. Capitalised terms are not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them under the Code/SEBI PIT Regulations.

"Audit Committee" means the Audit Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Companies in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations").

"Code" means the Amber's Code of Conduct for Insider Trading and fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information.

"Compliance Officer" means the person as defined in Code.

"Leak of UPSI" means communication of information which is/deemed to be UPSI by any person, who is in possession of UPSI, to any other person, directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, or in any manner whatsoever, except for legitimate purposes, performance of duties or discharge of legal obligations.

"Suspect" means the person or persons against or in relation to whom an inquiry is initiated in case of leak or suspected leak of UPSI.

"Unpublished price sensitive information or UPSI" means any information, relating to a company or its securities, directly or indirectly, that is not generally available which upon becoming generally available, is likely to materially affect the price of the securities and shall, ordinarily includes but not restricted to, information relating to the following: –

- i. financial results;
- ii. dividends;
- iii. change in capital structure;
- iv. mergers, de-mergers, acquisitions, de-listings, disposals and expansion of business and such other transactions;
- v. changes in key managerial personnel;
- vi. such other information as determined by the Board of Directors/Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer from time to time. (Regulation 2(1) (n))

"Whistle Blower" means an employee of a Company making a disclosure under the Whistle Blower Policy.

"Working days" means working days of the Company.

# Procedure for inquiry in case of Leak or suspected Leak of UPSI

# Source of information relating to leak of UPSI

The Ethics Counsellor/Chairman of Audit Committee may on becoming aware suo moto or on receipt of a written intimation of leak or suspected leak of UPSI from:

- THE SUSPECT;
- ANY OTHER PERSON, INCLUDING EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY
- REGULATORS

# Follow the below mentioned procedure in order to inquire and/or investigate the matter

# **Preliminary Inquiry:**

The object of preliminary inquiry is fact-finding, to ascertain the truth or otherwise of the allegations contained in the information or complaint, if any, and to collect necessary available material in support of the allegations and thereafter to decide whether there is justification to initiate further investigation/inquiry.

The Chairman of Audit Committee shall forthwith forward such intimation to CEO and/or CFO to conduct a preliminary inquiry headed by Compliance Officer. The said inquiry shall be completed within 2 working days from the date of receipt of such intimation and report thereof shall be circulated to the Chairman of Audit Committee/CEO/CFO and Compliance Officer.

# Intimation of Leak or suspected Leak of UPSI

If in the opinion of Chairman of Audit Committee/CEO/CFO and Compliance Officer, the preliminary inquiry report warrants further investigation, the same shall be submitted to:

If in the opinion of Chairman of Audit Committee/CEO/CFO and Compliance Officer, the preliminary inquiry report warrants further investigation, the same shall be submitted to:

- THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- INQUIRY COMMITTEE FOR DETAILED INVESTIGATION
- THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER SHALL SIMULTANEOUSLY INTIMATE SEBI ABOUT SUCH LEAK OR SUSPECTED LEAK OF UPSI.

### **Inquiry Committee**

Inquiry Committee shall consist of the following persons or any person nominated by such officers from their department –

- CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
- HEAD OF LEGAL
- HEAD OF INFORMATION SECURITY
- HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES.
- ANY OTHER PERSON NOMINATED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MANAGING DIRECTOR

# **Investigation by Inquiry Committee**

Upon receipt of the report of the preliminary inquiry and all other supporting documents, the Inquiry Committee is required to initiate the investigation. The said investigation shall be completed within 15 working days from the date of receipt of report of the preliminary inquiry.

The Inquiry Committee's investigation report shall be submitted to the Audit Committee and summary report shall be submitted to Board immediately, and such report shall also be submitted to SEBI simultaneously.

## **Powers of the Inquiry Committee**

For purpose of conducting inquiry, the Inquiry Committee may:

# a) Call upon

- SUCH EMPLOYEES/INDIVIDUALS TO SEEK CLARIFICATION OR INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE LEAK.
- O PERSONS / MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES INVOLVED IN GENERATION OF THE ORIGINAL DATA FOR PURPOSE OF DETERMINATION OF KEY FIGURES PERTAINING TO FINANCIAL FIGURES.
- PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE CONSOLIDATION OF THE FIGURES FOR THE FINANCIAL RESULTS.
- PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE PREPARATION OF BOARD NOTES AND PRESENTATIONS.
- PERSONS INVOLVED IN DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION RELATING TO FINANCIAL RESULTS IN THE PUBLIC DOMAIN.
- o ANY OTHER PERSONS WHO HAD ACCESS TO THE INFORMATION.
- ANY MARKET INTERMEDIARIES, FIDUCIARIES AND OTHER PERSON/ ENTITIES WHO HAVE ACCESS TO UPSI FOR INQUIRY CONDUCTED FOR LEAK OF SUCH UPSI.
- b) at its discretion, invite external investigators/experts.
- c) take necessary actions including sending the Suspect on leave, restrict physical access to the office premise, freeze access to systems, electronic devices, emails, etc., during the pendency of the investigations for fair conduct of the proceedings.
- d) keep the identity of the Suspect confidential till the completion of inquiry unless it is essentially required for the purpose of investigation.
- e) notify the Suspect of the allegations at the outset of internal investigation and provide him opportunity to represent his case and submit evidence.

f) do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as are necessary for the purpose of conduct of internal investigation.

# **Rights and Obligations of the Suspect**

The Suspect shall-

- CO-OPERATE WITH THE INQUIRY COMMITTEE DURING THE INVESTIGATION PROCESS.
- HAVE A RIGHT TO CONSULT WITH A PERSON OR PERSONS OF THEIR CHOICE, OTHER THAN MEMBERS OF INQUIRY COMMITTEE.
- RIGHT TO BE INFORMED OF THE OUTCOME OF THE INVESTIGATION

The Suspect(s) has the responsibility not to interfere with the investigation. Evidence shall not be withheld, destroyed or tampered with and witnesses shall not be influenced, coached, threatened or intimidated by the Suspects.

Unless there are compelling reasons not to do so, Suspects will be given the opportunity to respond to material findings contained in investigation report. No allegation of wrongdoing against a Suspect shall be considered as maintainable unless there is good evidence in support of the allegation.

# Consequences of non-compliance

- On receipt of report of inquiry committee, the Compliance Officer shall forthwith forward such report to Audit Committee.
- The disciplinary action against Suspect may be taken within 15 working days from receipt of investigation report by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Board of Directors or any other person authorised by the Board.
- The disciplinary action may include wage freeze, suspension, recovery, clawback, ineligibility for future participation in the Company's stock option plans or termination, as may be decided by the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors or any other person authorised by the Board.
- SEBI or any other appropriate regulatory authority would also be informed of such violation who may take appropriate action against the Suspect.